Public Document Pack

Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee

14 January 2021

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE RESOURCES AND SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE,

HELD ON THURSDAY, 14TH JANUARY, 2021 AT 9.00 AM
THE MEETING WILL BE HELD IN ACCORDANCE WITH STATUTORY INSTRUMENT
2020/392. LINK TO LIVE STREAM AVAILABLE VIA
HTTPS://WWW.TENDRINGDC.GOV.UK

Present:	Councillors M Stephenson (Chairman), Scott (Vice-Chairman), Allen, Barry, Bray, Codling, Harris and Morrison	
Also Present:	Councillor Carlo Guglielmi (Deputy Leader of Council; Portfolio Holder for Corporate Finance & Governance; Deputy Leader of Conservatives Group), Councillor Paul Honeywood (Portfolio Holder for Housing), Councillor Lynda McWilliams (Portfolio Holder for Partnerships), Councillor Mary Newton (Portfolio Holder for Business & Economic Growth), Councillor Alex Porter (Portfolio Holder for Leisure & Tourism), Councillor Neil Stock OBE (Leader of the Council; Leader of the Conservatives Group) and Councillor Michael Talbot (Portfolio Holder for Environment & Public Space)	
In Attendance:	Ian Davidson (Chief Executive), Damian Williams (Corporate Director (Operations and Delivery)), Richard Barrett (Assistant Director (Finance and IT) & Section 151 Officer), Lisa Hastings (Assistant Director (Governance) & Monitoring Officer), Michael Carran (Assistant Director (Economic Growth and Leisure)), Tim Clarke (Assistant Director (Housing and Environment)), Keith Simmons (Head of Democratic Services and Elections), Karen Hardes (IT Training Officer), Hattie Dawson-Dragisic (Apprentice (Democratic Services & Elections)), Jonathan Hamlet (Street Scene Officer), Anastasia Simpson (Assistant Director (Partnerships)) and Andy White (Assistant Director (Building and Public Realm))	

112. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Griffiths (with no substitute).

113. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on Monday 3 December 2020 were approved as a correct record and were then signed by the Chairman.

114. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillors Allen and Stephenson each declared an interest for the public record in regards to agenda item 5 (A.1 – Updated Financial Forecast/Budget 20221/22) as their businesses had received grant funding through the Council under the national support scheme for businesses.

Councillors Barry and Scott each declared an interest in the same item as Charities that they were associated with had likewise received financial support from the Council.

115. QUESTIONS ON NOTICE PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 38

On this occasion no Councillor had submitted notice of a question.

116. REPORT OF THE CORPORATE FINANCE AND GOVERNANCE PORTFOLIO HOLDER. - A.1 - UPDATED FINANCIAL FORECAST/BUDGET 20221/22

The Committee received the details submitted to the Cabinet on 18 December 2020 in relation to the updated financial forecast and proposed budget position for 2021/22. In particular, the Committee was advised as follows:

- A 'live' 10-year forecast was maintained and reported to Members throughout the year.
- The most up to date position in December each year was translated into the detailed budget for the following year for consultation with the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
- As part of maintaining a 'live' forecast, this report 'built' on the last position that was presented to Cabinet on 13 November 2020.
- Despite the challenging financial and economic environment, confidence in the long term approach to the forecast remained, which was supported by the forecast risk fund. It is also worth highlighting that the managed position in terms of reserves continued to enable the Council to respond to exceptional events such as the COVID 19 crisis.
- At this stage of the budget process, there was a net deficit of £1.647m forecast in 2021/22, an improvement of £0.128m compared with the £1.775m deficit reported to Cabinet on 13 November 2020. Therefore, the forecast remained within the financial boundaries set out in the long-term plan.
- Although subject to potential changes over the remaining budget-setting period, the current forecasted deficit of £1.647m would be met by drawing money down from the forecast risk fund.
- At the time of finalising this report, the Local Government Finance Settlement for 2021/22 had yet to be announced. They would be included in the figures that would be presented to Cabinet in January 2021 when it considered its final budget proposals for recommending to Full Council in February 2021. The budget included a council tax levy increase of £5, with this level of increase expected to be confirmed as allowable as part of the finance settlement announcements. No revenue support grant had been included in the budget for 2021/22, but similarly to the late announcement last year, the Government could provide some funding again next year, especially when reflecting on the financial impact of COVID 19 on Local Authorities.
- Once the final position for 2021/22 was determined, the remaining years of the 10-year forecast would be revised, set against the budget position for 2021/22 and would be reported to Members later in the budget setting process.

In addition to the above, the Committee was advised of the following in respect of reserves, provisions and one-off sums for specific projects:

RESERVES

Current Budget 20/21

	Balance 31 March 2020	Contributions From	Contributions To	Estimated Balance 31 March 2021
	£		0	£
Earmarked Reserves				
Revenue Commitments Reserve	11,257,870	,		1,082,550
Capital Commitments Reserve	3,793,110	(3,793,110)	13,820	13,820
Forecast Risk Fund	3,253,000	(393,240)	393,240	3,253,000
Asset Refurbishment / Replacement Reserve	1,269,288			1,269,288
Beach Recharge Reserve	1,500,000			1,500,000
Benefit Reserve	999,790			999,790
Building for the Future Reserve	2,609,750	(1,370,940)		1,238,810
Business Rate Resilience Reserve	1,758,422			1,758,422
Commuted Sums Reserve	389,402	(28,000)		361,402
Crematorium Reserve	154,252			154,252
Election Reserve	0		30,000	30,000
Haven Gateway Partnership Reserve	75,000			75,000
Leisure Capital Projects Reserve	124,000		50,000	174,000
Planning Inquiries and Enforcement Reserve	99,000	(20,000)		79,000
Residents Free Parking Reserve	221,000			221,000
Section 106 Reserve	1,388,673			1,388,673
	28,892,557	(15,780,610)	487,060	13,599,007
Uncommitted Reserve	4,000,000			4,000,000
Total Reserves	32,892,557	(15,780,610)	487,060	17,599,007

Funded Projects / Initiatives List

List Includes both Revenue and Capital Budgets

Elot molado both Novolido ana Gapital Badgoto		
Item	Budget 20/21	
Business Investment and Growth Projects	1,585,530	
Starlings and Milton Road Development	1,556,380	
·		
Garden Communities – Tendring-Colchester Border	1,300,000	
Rural and Urban Infrastructure Fund	1,184,310	
Back to Business Initiative		

	862,000
Community Housing Trust Grant Supported Projects	628,010
Clacton Leisure Centre - Spa and Wetside Re-development	521,480
Tendring Community Fund	500,000
Housing in Jaywick Sands	464,230
Office Rationalisation	355,100
Climate Emergency Initiatives / Energy Efficiency Schemes	313,450
Future High Streets Fund	306,790
Planning Improvement Projects	258,380
Additional enforcement activities	249,000
Clinical Commissioning Group Wellbeing Hub	245,000
Beach Hut/Seafronts Investment Plan	208,810
Clacton Multi-Storey Car Park Repairs	180,000
Health and Safety Programme of Activities	165,000
Clacton Town Centre Fountain	159,080
Laying Out Cemetery Works	154,650
Empty Homes Initiatives	152,220
Digital Transformation Projects	129,340
European Union Exit Preparation	126,410
Housing Early Intervention Officer - 3 year fixed term post	100,000
Public Health - Improvement Projects	94,580
Private Sector Innovation & Enforcement Grant	85,360
Martello Tower Repair Works	83,580
New Beach Huts	64,600

2 One year fixed term posts to support improvements to the overall	
appearance of the district	44,000
	40.000
Public Convenience Works	40,000
Princes Theatre Toilets	40,000
Street Lighting Upgrade Project	35,570
Green Waste Service Improvement Projects	28,780
Total	12 221 640
Street Lighting Upgrade Project	35,5

EXTERNALLY FUNDED PROJECTS

Item	Budget 20/21
Jaywick Sands Commercial Units	2,000,000
Celebrating 150th Anniversary of Clacton	250,000

OTHER PROJECTS

Item	Budget 20/21
Freeports	n/a
Building Council Homes	n/a
Environmental Health Officers to Respond to Brexit requirements at Harwich	
Port	n/a

The Committee thereupon undertook its scrutiny of the Financial Forecast / Budget Proposals for 2021/22.

Prior to the meeting, questions that the Committee Members had raised had been circulated to the relevant Cabinet Members and Officers in order to enable responses to be provided. Those questions and responses form the Appendix to these Minutes.

Members of the Cabinet, accompanied by the appropriate Management Team Member or other Senior Officer, attended the meeting in turn and assisted the Committee in its enquiry of the matters put to them in respect of the budget position and allocation of funds.

Having considered all of the information that had been provided it was **RESOLVED** that the **CABINET** be **RECOMMENDED** that:

(a) In respect of future outturn positions on the Council's annual budget, to allocate as a priority any available underspend following permitted carry forwards to extend further the measures to achieve the Back to Business Agenda of the Council.

- (b) Further to (a), to establish a Business Roundtable for the District as part of the Back to Business Agenda and to inform that Agenda going forward.
- (c) To reassess all the current reserves, provisions and one off sums allocated by the Council to determine whether they were still required, relevant to the Council's Corporate Plan and the associated sum was at the appropriate level and:
 - (i) to re-allocate sums such as those for the Clacton Town Centre Fountain and Residents Free Parking (where the cost has been incorporated in the base revenue budget) to more closely align with the Corporate Plan priorities of the Council.
 - (ii) to identify the specific intentions for the £1.585M for Business Investment and Growth Projects reserve or otherwise look to reallocate that reserve.
 - (iii) To allocate a further £56k to resourcing public realm improvements across the District (supplementing and extending the £44k set aside to fund '2 One year fixed term posts to support improvements to the overall appearance of the District') thereby allocating a total of £100k to this initiative in total.
 - (iv) From the reallocation process, and in recognition of the additional £110k in recycling credits achieved by the Council in 2020/21, to identify £10k to improve recycling bring sites operated by the Council in the District to improve the attractiveness of those sites, signage at and to those sites and thereby further encourage their use and address relevant issues at those sites.
- (d) To request that proposals for use of the Tendring Community Fund be developed swiftly so that these can be put in front of a meeting of the Portfolio Holder Working Party on the Tendring Community Fund without delay.
- (e) To identify whether existing funding in the revenue budget and reserves, provisions and one-off sums enables the Council to support measures adequately to address the mental health needs of the local population as we ultimately come out of covid-19 pandemic restrictions and if this is found to be insufficient to look to providing funding to achieve this.
- (f) To pro-actively assess and monitor the resources required to deliver a dynamic and expansive Tourism Strategy for the District (and the Year 1 delivery plan to accompany that Strategy) to maximise the advantage to the District as soon as covid-19 pandemic restrictions are lifted and extending beyond the normal summer season.

It was further **RESOLVED** that:

- (a) The work underway in respect of 'auditing' one off sums and the schemes they are intended to fund and to review progress with this at the March meeting of the Committee. That this review should include details of the original decision to allocate the funds and an assessment as to whether the scheme is on target to be delivered.
- (b) The receipt, allocation, timing and use of section 106 funds to support community infrastructure associated with development in the District be reviewed by the Committee as part of its work programme.

- (c) The Chairman of the Committee is requested to urge the Portfolio Holder for the Environment to undertake further efforts with Essex County Council and Highways England to secure a good level of cleaning on the A120 and A133 in view of the extensive uses of those roads and the impression given to visitors that litter is acceptable from the current level of rubbish alongside those roads.
- (d) That the Community Leadership Overview and Scrutiny Committee be invited to consider the mental health support to residents referenced above in recommendation to the Cabinet (e).

117. REPORT OF THE CORPORATE FINANCE AND GOVERNANCE PORTFOLIO HOLDER. - A.2 - HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET PROPOSALS 2021/2022

The Committee received the report submitted to Cabinet on 18 December 2020 on the HRA Budget for 2021/22 including the movement in Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Balances, the level of fees and charges for 2021/22 and the HRA Capital Programme. In particular, the attention of Members was drawn to:

- Only limited changes to the HRA budget were proposed in 2021/22, pending a longer-term review of the HRA business plan during 2021.
- 2020/21 was the first year that the Government allowed rents to be increased following a 4-year period where they were required to be reduced by 1% each year.
- In-line with rent setting guidance issued by the Regulator for Social Housing, rents are proposed to be increased by the Consumer Price Index plus 1% in 2021/22 (a 1.5% increase) to continue the recovery from the 4 years of rent reductions mentioned above.
- The average weekly rent proposed for 2021/22 is £84.10 (£82.42 in 2020/21)
- Although the above increase in rents generates additional income of £0.193m, other changes to the budget have more than offset this position with an overall deficit of £0.012m forecast for 2021/22.
- It was proposed to fund this relatively small deficit by drawing money down from the HRA General Balance, which was estimated to total £5.257m at the end of 2021/22 after taking into account this adjustment.
- The proposed HRA Capital Programme for 2021/22 totals £3.457m and continued to provide for a range of schemes and projects.
- The Capital programme included a revenue contribution of £0.281m to support new build and acquisition projects. This on-going budget could either support the direct cost of projects within the capital programme or meet the borrowing costs that were likely to be required to deliver the 200 new properties the Cabinet had committed to provide.
- Relevant matters in respect of the potential to fund an increase in the level of borrowing required to deliver the new build projects at the speed and scale committed too.
- The HRA general balance was forecast to total £5.257m at the end of 2021/22, which retained a strong financial position against which the HRA 30 year Business Plan could be further developed.
- 'Old' HRA debt continued to reduce year on year as principal is repaid with a total debt position at the end of 2021/22 forecast to be £36.777m (A reduction of £1.664m compared with the figure at the end of this year).

The Committee thereupon undertook its scrutiny of the HRA Budget Proposals for 2021/22.

Prior to the meeting, questions were submitted to the Housing Portfolio Holder in respect of the HRA and these are set out in the Appendix to these Minutes together with the responses provided.

The Housing Portfolio Holder, Councillor P B Honeywood, accompanied by the appropriate Senior Officer, attended the meeting and assisted the Committee in its enquiry of the matters put to him in respect of the HRA budget position.

Having considered all of the information that had been provided and acknowledging the measures to address the costs to the Housing Revenue Account of unrented Council housing ('voids'):

It was **RESOLVED** that **CABINET** be **RECOMMENDED** to set a target level for reducing void periods in 2021/22 in the housing stock with a view to providing specific focus to those measures.

The meeting was declared closed at 2.45 pm

Chairman

Response submitted to the Committee

Question to

Minute Item 11

RESOURCES AND SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 14 JANUARY 2021

BUDGET SCRUTINY QUESTIONS OF PORTFOLIO HOLDERS

Question

Each Portfolio Holder was asked to address the Committee on the relevant sections of the budget and the extent to which the budget (including one off provisions and reserves) met the needs of the service in 2021/22 and the major risks of the service in so far as the budget was concerned. Specific questions were asked by the Committee as follows.

Question to	Question	Response submitted to the Committee	
09:10-09:30 hrs attendance			
Cllr Giancarlo	The Council is at Year 5 of the 10 Year strategy to	I don't think it would be prudent to consider	
Guglielmi	achieve savings required in its base budget over that	relaxing the savings target at this point in time.	
	time while avoiding the much larger savings required in a single year without that strategy. The savings target over the remaining five years of the strategy is significantly higher than was the case at the start of that strategy and yet underspends have been recorded. Is the strategy savings target therefore appropriate or should a lower savings target be set bearing in mind the experience to date?	The underlying principle of the long term plan is to enable income to grow over time, which may enable us to reduce the level of savings in the future but I don't think that time is now. The flexibility that the long term plan has provided has been crucial, especially this year where we have been able to 'relax' the savings target for one year – however this will in itself have a telescopic effect so the savings required in future years remain an important element of the long term plan. In respect of the underspends from previous years, as explained to the Committee previously, not all favourable items from prior years can readily translate into on-going savings on a permanent	
		basis going forward, and some may be one-off in nature in any case such as general Government	

T
Ø
Õ
Ø
2

	grant funding. Therefore, the underlying variances behind any outturn position will determine the way forward, rather than just looking at the overall outturn position itself. Nobody, unless they come across unlimited wealth, can repay their mortgage overnight and have a relaxed attitude when they know what the level of their repayments is on a regular basis, and depending on what type of mortgage they have, their repayment level goes down as the years pass.
Further to the above, is it appropriate to look at extending the ten year strategy and if so by how long and what are the other considerations (e.g. increasing the forecast risk reserve).	This question was addressed in the report that the Committee considered back in November, where it was highlighted that the long term forecast would be reviewed in 2023.
Large sums of money have been set aside to fund a range of projects and schemes. Is it time to make fresh decisions on the allocation of the funds and release or reallocate those funds where the original purpose is not to be pursued? In this regard I reference the sums allocated for the Clacton Town Centre Fountain (£159K) and for Residents' Free Car Parking (£221K).	Yes, it is time to make decisions about the money that has previously been set aside for projects that are no longer to be pursued. The general aim is to consider such re-allocations when a subsequent project comes forward but I appreciate that there may be long lead in times to such projects, which may leave money against budgets previously agreed for extended periods of time. However, it is a useful point to raise and I will review such budgets as soon as possible.

On 13 August, the Committee recommended Cabinet: "Consider establishing a corporate dedicated project completion resource, with project management skills, with a direction to progress projects and priorities of corporate significance to the Council, support delivery milestones for those projects and unlock capacity and other issues that could frustrate delivery of those projects and priorities." This was reported to Cabinet on 11 September and I invite the Deputy Leader to advise the Committee as to an update on the proposal.	As agreed by Cabinet, the issue raised was to be considered as part of developing the back to business initiative and associated action plan, which needed to translate comments and feedback into practical actions on the ground. Although this work remains on-going, at its meeting in November, Cabinet agreed the first of these tangible projects which are being taken forward. It is also important to highlight that an external consultant is currently undertaking an 'audit' of the various projects and initiatives we have proudly identified and backed with cash to see what additional capacity / resources may be needed to make the necessary progress. I will hopefully be able to provide a further update in early February. However I can't emphasise enough the pressure our officers are under in responding to the ongoing COVID 19 crisis, which will undoubtedly have an impact on this work.
Currently the Council has almost £33M in reserves, is there an optimum reserve figure for a District Council of TDCs size/revenue budget?	As the Committee is aware, the question incorrectly gives the impression that the Council is sitting on £33m of uncommitted reserves. Leading on from the answer given above, we have cash backed a number of initiatives and projects rather than making promises based on future funding. A large percentage of the figure the Committee have referred to is therefore associated with continuing projects and initiatives which were

10.10-10.30 hrs attendance

agreed to be carried forward at the end of 2019/20 which would have been included in a report that the Committee considered last year. A number of reserves have also been set aside to meet risks going forward, which if not provided for could put the financial sustainability of the Council at real risk, something I am not prepared to expose us to. In terms of uncommitted reserves, the figure set aside is £4m, which is based on a risk assessed approach. 09:40-10:00 hrs attendance Cllr. Lynda Sums of money have been allocated for "Public Health All these funding pots are being looked at McWilliams Improvement Projects" (£95K), the "Tendring holistically, together with the back to business Community Fund" (£500K) and the "CCG Wellbeing agenda and the business support grants. An Hub" (£245K) with overlapping objectives. Is there a announcement will be made shortly about the coherent approach to the delivery of those objectives opening of the Tendring Community Fund, to given that when we come out of covid restrictions the support our voluntary organisations at this extent of the need in the community for help is likely to challenging time. be extensive? Following nominations from Group Leaders, the Working Group for the Tendring Community Fund comprises Councillors McWilliams (Chairman), Alexander, Allen, Bush, Chapman, V E Guglielmi, J Henderson, Land, Newton and Wiggins. In addition there was a vacancy on the Working Party following the passing of the late Councillor Joy Broderick.

Cllr. Alex Porter	Given that a significant element of the Tourism season in 2020 was lost due to Covid restrictions, and the importance of Tourism to the local economy of the District, how are resources going to be applied to ensure that the 2021 season is as successful as it can be.	As the committee is aware, the draft tourism strategy was considered by Cabinet in October and was subsequently sent out for consultation. The final strategy is due back to Cabinet in February with an accompanying delivery plan for year 1. This will contain a number of actions to support the District's recovery. Further to this, there are a number of short term projects listed in the emerging Back to Business delivery plan, with the aim of supporting the local tourism economy, e.g. Clacton 150, Celebrate Tendring etc.
	At the start of 2021/22 there will be £174K in the "Leisure Capital Projects Reserve". Can you tell the Committee what Capital Projects this is to fund? The Committee is aware that a separate allocation of £521K has been made for the Clacton Leisure Centre spa and wet-side redevelopment.	A number of planned essential maintenance projects will be addressed through this reserve and a report is due to be considered in the coming months. This will include the replacement of sand filter media (for the District's swimming pools) and a boiler replacement. This is scheduled to take place towards the end of the year.
10.40–11.00 hrs Cllr. Paul Honeywood	The population profile of the District suggests that there will be a higher number of properties requiring adaptations to make them suitable for those with mobility impairments. In the circumstances is it timely to look at the needs across the District and the appropriate resources to meet those needs across both the HRA and the General Fund.	The district does indeed have a population age profile that shows a higher proportion of older people living in the area. This is a fact that we are very aware of and is reflected in the adaptations programme that we offer to residents which is by some margin the largest in Essex for Disabled Facilities Grants. The Council has an allocation from the Better Care Fund of over £1.8M and is therefore more than adequately resourced to provide the adaptations necessary.

	-	1	_	
,	2	1	5	
	(Ī)	
	C	3))

Within our own housing stock we have the benefit of a capital allocation of over £400k in the HRA to cover the cost of adaptations that are required by our own tenants. Working with partners in the healthcare system and with Essex County Council we identify those in need of adaptations and provide a comprehensive service to ensure they receive the help required. The HRA budget for 2021/22 includes lost rental income The number of void properties has increased throughout 2020 for a number of reasons not least of £160K arising from void properties. We are advised that on average there are 50-60 properties that are void the current pandemic that has at times meant it each contributing £84.10 per week of lost income. It has not been possible to let properties or increased obviously takes time to turn around a void property and the time taken to turn them around and complete rehouse individuals and families in need. What the allocation and re-letting process. measures will be implemented in 2021/22 to reduce the average void period and reduce the cost associated with This is a situation we are acutely aware of and measures have been put in place, some of which it. were already planned, to speed up the process of re-letting a property once it has become vacant. These measures include: A new software system for Housing Register applications to be introduced in February that will allow online applications and electronic handling of information and communication with applicants Linked to that software, a further piece of software that will hold, track and manage the allocation of void properties, reducing a lot of manual processing hat current slows the process

11.10 -11.30 hrs	sattendance	 A new Term Maintenance Contract with built in performance targets and penalty clauses will be in place from April that will give better control over the speed and quality of works undertaken. An officer taskforce meeting fortnightly with the specific aim of reducing void times to as a low as possible.
Cllr. Mary Newton	£126K has been set aside to be spent on preparations for the UK's exit from the EU. As the UK has now left the EU should that sum be released or reallocated or is it earmarked for specific measures?	This sum was retained to allow the Council to address any critical issues in the immediate build up to or after EU transition. Work is now underway to work through other identified expenditure for EU transition such as Variable Message Signs for the District's roadsides.
11 40 12 00 hr	£1.585M has been set aside for "Business Investment and Growth Projects". That's a large sum of money in the Council's accounts. What Business and Growth Projects are to be funded from that sum in 2021/22?	Now the Economic Growth Strategy has been refreshed and adopted, a delivery plan will be brought forward in the coming months for allocation of this budget towards strategic goals.
11.40 –12.00 hr. Cllr. Michael Talbot	£44K has been set aside to fund "2 One year fixed term posts to support improvements to the overall appearance of the district". Where are we with the delivery of this? What is the plan?	The post is incorporated into the Public Realm team which has enabled the service to undertake improvements to public realm as opposed to meeting current maintenance requirements. This includes improvements to the round garden Walton on the Naze, the Mayflower 400 open space Harwich, the restoration of rockeries along Clacton seafront and the commencement of improvements to the seafront open space and garden at Martello Bay Clacton.

The post will support future projects including Clacton Town centre enhancements, a new flood memorial garden, Harwich and refurbishment of the Cliff Dovercourt.

In addition, improvements are planned for the entrances at Weeley crematorium, Kirby and Clacton cemeteries and Rush Green recreation ground Clacton as well as the seafront garden and boating pond area of Clacton. Public realm is also working towards landscaping and enhancing existing children's play areas to provide a more welcoming and safer environment.

Public Realm improvements will be conducted with the support of Building and Engineering Services on projects including Clacton town centre, the Cliff Dovercourt and others.

Public Realm are happy to provide information on areas of refurbishment / improvement as opposed to general maintenance.

The post has approximately 6 months to run. It would be beneficial to have further funding, or for additional resources to be provided for future projects.

The service is trying to concentrate on areas of maximum impact such as visitor / communal areas, but is also happy to consider ideas or requests from members.

U	
ğ	
ge	
Ö	

	Well maintained and enhanced public realm has many benefits including positive health and wellbeing physical and mental, encouraging business and economic regeneration as well as lowering crime and anti-social behaviour.
The net ongoing savings being built into the budget includes £115K to reflect the expected continuation of increased recycling performance from the waste collection service changes from 2019. Given the financial benefit to the Council from increasing recycling should some of that saving be allocated to improving signage to and the general area of recycling bring sites to make them more attractive and encourage their use?	Officers within the Street Scene Team are currently undertaking an audit of all the 80+ bring sites located across the district with the intention of highlighting both the potential for increasing the scope of materials collected at the sites but also the overall standard of the site and signage with the ambition of enhancing the experience of the users to these sites, which in turn will help to promote and enhance recycling It is anticipated that these works, once completed will be within the current waste and recycling budgets and would not require any additional budget.
The Committee has previously asked that the capital provision for cliff stabilisation works (£4m) should incorporate a district wide survey to highlight the Council's likely exposure to such costs in the foreseeable future. Do you think it prudent to try to estimate that financial risk and will such a survey be pursued (and particularly if external funding is secured to reduce the £4m currently allocated for the slippage at Holland-on-Sea)?	The £4m capital allocation is for specific works to two slipped areas in Holland on Sea. A previous piece of high level consultancy linked to the recently completed cliff stabilisation package identified that all of the cliffs owned by the Council have low factors of safety and could be subject to future movement. In general secure slopes of this type would be at 18o and those owned by the Council are as steep as 30o in places.

		Officers commissioned the work following internal assessment of the areas of the District's coast for which TDC is responsible as Coast Protection Authority and as the landowner: Brightlingsea near Promenade Way (where there are no cliffs), Clacton Martello to Haven Frinton Greensward to Walton Naze and Dovercourt West end Lane to Harwich Beach. Because the council is the landowner opportunities for third party funding are limited. It is likely that the Council could be liable to other parties if infrastructure such as streets are damaged
12:10-12:30 hrs	attendance	
Cllr. Neil Stock OBE	The sum of £862K has been allocated to the "Back to Business Initiative" and the Committee would like to know where we are with the detailed action plan that will start to commit funds from that sum. Can you provide that update?	The draft delivery plan for the Back to Business agenda is now complete and will be brought forward to Cabinet following a meeting to approve the content.

In addition, all Portfolio Holders are asked to confirm that the Fees and Charges they are responsible for have been reviewed to ensure that they are set at a level to recover the costs of the service they relate to or otherwise have been set at levels set by statute.